Revised





2023

Brecknock and Torriano Schools Federation Relationships Education Policy 2023-24

Committee	Curriculum
Last reviewed	November 23
Next revision	Annual
To be reviewed	November 2024

Brecknock Primary School, Cliff Villas, London, NW1 9AL Ph. 020 7485 6334 Email. admin@brecknock.camden.sch.uk

Torriano Primary School. Torriano Avenue, London, NW5 2SJ Ph. 020 7424 0202 Email. admin@torriano.camden.sch.uk

# Table of Contents

1. Purpose of Policy	2
2. Development of the Policy	3
3. Links to Other Policies	3
4. Definition of Relationship Education	4
5. Why Teach Relationship Education at Primary School?	4
6. Values Promoted through Relationships Education	4
7. Aims for Relationship Education	4
8. Content and Organisation of the Programme	4
9. Statutory Elements of Relationship Education	9
10. Sex Education and the Right To Withdraw Children (Year 6)	9
11. Confidentiality, Safeguarding and Child Protection	10
12. Assessing Relationships Education	10
13. Monitoring and Evaluating RSE	10
14. Engaging and Involving Parents	10
15. Disseminating The Policy	11
16. Roles and Responsibilities	11
Appendix 1: Relevant Links To The Science National Curriculum	12
Appendix 2: Statutory Content for Relationships Education	14
Appendix 3: Statutory Content for Health Education (Relevant to RSE)	16

### 1. Purpose of Policy

All primary schools are required to teach Relationships Education and to produce a Relationships Education policy. This policy also includes a statement on Sex Education which covers a definition, what is taught, who teaches it a parent's right to withdraw

The purpose of the policy is to:

- Give information to staff, parents and carers, governors, pupils and outside visitors about what is taught in Relationships Education, how it is taught and who teaches it.
- Enable parents and carers to support their children in learning about Relationships Education
- Give a clear statement on what the school aims to achieve from Relationships Education, the values underpinning it and why it is compulsory for all primary school pupils.
- Set out how Relationships Education meets school's legal requirements to promote wellbeing (Children Act 2004)
- To prepare children for the challenges, opportunities and responsibilities of adult life (Education Act 2006)
- Ensure pupils learn about the nature of marriage and its importance for family life and bringing up of children (Learning and Skills Act 2006)
- Protect pupils from unsuitable teaching and materials (Learning and Skills Act 2006)
- Have an up to date policy developed in consultation with pupils and parents (Education Act 1996)
- Meet the school's safeguarding obligations
- Make the policy available to pupils and parents (Education Act 1996)
  - Comply with The Public Sector Equality Duty (as set out in section 149 of the Equality Act 2010). This duty requires public bodies to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of opportunity and foster good relations between different people when carrying out their activities

#### 2. Development of the Policy

This policy was developed by Senior Leaders and Camden Learning and involved consultation with pupils, staff, the school governors, parents and carers and the wider community.

We organised a series of consultations

- School council gave their views on what to teach and the best ways to teach Relationships Education
- Parents and carers were invited to a consultation meeting and gave their views on what they wanted their children to be taught

• Staff discussed the draft policy

We have also taken account of the

- Statutory guidance on Relationships Education, RSE and Health Education (DfE Feb 2019)
- Section 34 of the Children and Social Work Act 2017.
- Camden's Example Relationships policy (September 2021)
- Equality Act 2010 and the Public Sector Equality Duty
- Review of Sexual Abuse in Schools and Colleges (Ofsted June 2021)

#### 3. Links to other policies

This policy links to the PSHE policy, the Safeguarding and Child Protection policy, Behaviour policy, Equality policy and Online Safety policy.

Our provision of Relationships Education is part of our approach to support the health and wellbeing of children and our commitment to being recognised as a healthy school, which was initially achieved in May 2013.

#### 4. Definition of Relationship and Health Education

The requirements for teaching Relationship Education in primary are described in the DfE statutory guidance and based on this guidance, we have defined Relationships Education as learning about

- Different relationships (including online) and how to make and maintain healthy, caring and respectful relationships within families and friendships, including understanding about appropriate boundaries.
- The importance of families in caring for children.
  - How to recognise when a relationship (with adults and/or peers) is unhealthy or unsafe and how to seek help and report concerns or abuse (including online).
  - The importance of respecting others who are different from themselves whether physically, their family structure, their race, religion, belief, disability or sexual orientation.
  - Different types of bullying and discriminatory language, the impact it has, how to prevent it and how to get help.
  - Stereotypes and how they can lead to prejudice and discrimination e.g. based on gender, race, religion, disability or sexual orientation.

#### 5. Why teach Relationship Education at primary school?

The government has made Relationship Education a statutory part of the curriculum and we agree that this is a crucial aspect of the primary curriculum.

We want children to develop the skills to make positive, caring, respectful and healthy relationships; in their friendships, within their families and with other children and adults.

We recognise that many children in primary already have active online lives and that the knowledge and skills they learn in Relationships Education will help them to navigate the online world safely and understand what is and is not appropriate and respectful behaviour.

Through Relationships Education, pupils also gain the knowledge they need to recognise and report abuse, including emotional, physical and sexual abuse and keep themselves safe both online and offline.

For all these important reasons, the government has made Relationships Education a statutory part of the school curriculum in which all pupils are required to participate. Parents do not have the right to withdraw their children from these lessons.

#### 6. Values promoted through Relationships Education

As a Gold Rights Respecting School, we are committed to creating an inclusive school which promotes diversity and equality and fundamental British Values\*. Teaching Relationships Education will ensure that all children develop respect for others and for difference and tolerance and understanding of all aspects of diversity. We want all children to understand and feel accepted in the society they are growing up in and for every child in Camden to thrive in modern Britain.

We believe that Relationships Education promotes the aims and values of our school which include

- Respect for self and others.
- Kindness and consideration for others.
- Commitment, trust and love within relationships.
- Promoting equality and respecting rights and responsibilities in relationships.
- Respecting and celebrating difference and diversity.
- Preventing prejudice and discrimination based on religion or belief, race, disability sexual orientation, sex and gender reassignment\*\*.
- Promoting gender equality, challenging gender stereotypes and inequality.
- Valuing family life and stable, loving and caring relationships, including marriage and civil partnerships, for bringing up children.
- Everyone has the right to a healthy and safe relationship.

\* Democracy, individual liberty, the rule of law and mutual respect and tolerance.

\*\*Protected characteristics as enshrined in law through the Equality Act 2010

#### 7. Aims for Relationship Education

Our Relationships Education programme aims to help children:

• Develop the confidence to talk, listen and think about feelings and relationships.

- Develop the skills to make and maintain healthy and respectful friendships and family relationships.
- Understand the importance of respect, responsibility, love and care in relationships.
- Recognise unhealthy or unsafe relationships, including friendships (and online), within the family, peers and with known or unknown adults.
- Recognise the differences between appropriate and inappropriate or unsafe contact (with adults and/or peers); physical or otherwise and to know how to report it and get help.
- Understand the importance of respecting others even when they are different from them.
- Understand and respect different types of families, including families with one parent, with same sex parents, families that foster and adopt children.
- Challenge and prevent discrimination based on difference e.g. race, religion, gender, gender identity, disability or sexual orientation.
- Recognise bullying and discriminatory language based on race, religion, gender, disability or sexual orientation and develop the confidence to prevent it and report it.
- Challenge gender racial stereotypes and inequality and promote equality and respect in relationships.
- Know how to be safe online and behave respectfully and appropriately.
- Know where and how to seek information and advice when they need help.

#### 8. Content and Organisation of the programme

#### Where is Relationships Education taught?

Relationships education is taught through a planned programme in PSHE, taught as timetabled lessons in all years. Sometimes this will be organised as blocks of teaching e.g. teaching about preventing bullying to coincide with Anti-bullying week or integrated into topics such as;

# Families and people who care for me, Caring friendships, Respectful relationships, Online relationships, being safe.

Lessons are at a level appropriate to the needs and maturity of the pupils. There is also time for discrete teaching topics across the years. We ensure that the same messages about being safe online are taught through Relationships Education in computing lessons.

#### What is taught in Relationships Education?

Our Relationships Education programme

- Reflects the statutory requirements in the DfE guidance which describes what needs to be taught by the end of primary (see appendix 1).
- We have planned the curriculum so that the knowledge, skills and attitudes are appropriate to the age and maturity of pupils and progress from one year to another, building on what has been learnt in previous years.

#### What is taught in each year group?

We have a statutory duty to teach the Relationships Education elements of the science national curriculum. See Appendix 1 for the Relationships Education aspects of statutory science.

- The content is based on the Relationships Education aspects in PSHE and the statutory elements of the science national curriculum.
- The content for each year group covers knowledge, skills and attitudes and is appropriate to the age and maturity of pupils and progresses from one year to another, building on what has been learnt in previous years.
- Teachers plan lessons, taking account of the Camden Relationships Education learning objectives and suggested scheme of work.

The Government guidance '*expects all pupils to have been taught LGBTQ+ content at a timely point as part of this area of the curriculum.*' We will not have specific LGBTQ+ lessons but through our teaching will help children to understand the society in which they are living and growing up in, as well as being respectful of others and difference.

These areas of learning are taught within the context of family life, taking care to make sure that there is no stigmatisation of children based on their home circumstances (families can include single parent families, LGBT parents, families headed by grandparents, adoptive parents and foster parents/carers, amongst other structures), along with reflecting sensitively that some children may have a different structure of support around them (for example, looked-after children or young carers).

When children learn about bullying and discriminatory language they will learn that this can happen because people are different or perceived to be different, and this can be because they have a different religion, are a different race, have a disability, or a different sexual orientation.

#### <u>In year 1</u>

In year 1 we teach a topic on families where children talk about their own families helping them to understand that all families are different but that they all love and care for one another. We use story books that show a wide range of family structures, including families with two mums and two dads.

#### From year 2

We introduce the idea that other people's families may not be the same as our own, but that is ok and that even though they are different their love and care for one another is what is important and that we respect one another's' differences. Children talk about their own family structures which might include families with one parent, with parents who are married, with parents that are not married, families with parents who are divorced where children might have parents and step parents, families where children are living with relatives such as aunts and grandmothers.

Teachers introduce a range of family structures to reflect the diversity within the school and within the community such as families where children are fostered and adopted and families where there are two mums and two dads.

The diversity of families is included when children cover the topic of families in Key Stage 2.

Our library includes a range of information books and storybooks reflecting family diversity and our inclusive values. Age appropriate books are introduced when the subject is being covered in class e.g. when teaching about families.

#### Teaching about different relationships

In year 6, pupils learn that there are different types of romantic relationships, and that these can be between couples of the same and different sex. They learn a basic meaning of the words heterosexual, gay and lesbian.

#### Teaching about preventing bullying and discriminatory language

We do not tolerate any type of bullying or discriminatory language, including using the word lesbian, gay, bisexual or transgender in an insulting or derogatory way. The Equality Act 2010 requires schools to prevent all types of discrimination.

When we teach about bullying in years 5 and 6, we cover all types of bullying and discriminatory language, including bullying based on race, religion, disability, gender, gender reassignment and sexual orientation. They also learn what homophobic and transphobic bullying mean.

Pupils learn about the impact that bullying and discriminatory language have on people, how these can cause prejudice and discrimination and mental health problems and what we can do to prevent this happening.

We will also be mindful of the law and legal requirements, taking care not to condone or encourage illegal political activity, such as violent action against people, criminal damage to property, hate crime, terrorism or the illegal use of drugs

#### Who teaches Relationships Education and how is it taught?

Relationships Education will be taught by the class teacher but sometimes outside organisations are involved e.g. a theatre company during Anti-bullying Week. If visitors are involved in Relationships Education, we will:

- Ensure their contribution is integrated into our scheme of work
- Provide the visitor with an up-to-date copy of the school's Relationships Education Policy and ensure they adhere to it
- Ensure that the class teacher is present throughout the lesson/session, taking responsibility for class management
- Follow up the learning in later lessons
- We recognise that teaching about some aspects of Relationships Education is sensitive. All teachers set a group agreement or ground rules with pupils to ensure that an atmosphere is created where pupils feel able to ask questions, discuss concerns, talk about feelings and relationships, understand about confidentiality, are respectful of one another and do not discuss or ask private information of each other or the teacher.
- We answer questions honestly and sensitively, appropriate to the age and maturity of the pupils. Some questions may not be answered immediately if the teacher feels they need to consult with the PSHE Lead and some questions may be more appropriately answered on a one-to-one basis, rather than with the whole class. In Key Stage 2 classes (when appropriate) we provide a question box so that pupils can anonymously ask questions and these are then answered by the class teacher.

• We will emphasise the importance of strong and supportive relationships, including marriage and civil partnerships (between opposite and same sex couples), and that caring and loving relationships are at the heart of happy and secure family life.

Teaching resources are carefully chosen to ensure that they are

- age-appropriate, given the age, developmental stage and background of our pupils.
- Are evidence-based and contain robust facts and statistics,
- promoting equality of opportunity through their use of language, cultural attitudes, family make-up and images, including body image, avoiding stereotyping, racism and sexism.
- from credible sources
- compatible with effective teaching approaches
- sensitive to pupils' experiences and won't provoke distress
- A variety of teaching methods are used that enable pupils to participate and reflect on their learning, role play, quizzes, pair and small group work, mixing groups so that pupils work with a range of peers. We also use case studies, stories, puppets and role plays to help de-personalise discussions and help pupils gain confidence to talk and listen to each other.
- We ensure that the Relationships Education teaching programme is inclusive and is appropriate and relevant to all pupils, including those with SEN and disabilities. Where needed, Relationships Education is differentiated to meet the needs of pupils and specialist resources may be used to respond to their individual needs. In some cases pupils have individual support or work in small groups.
- Teachers ensure that the content, approach and use of inclusive language reflect the diversity of the school community and wider society, and help all pupils feel valued and included, regardless of their gender, race, religion, ability, disability and family structure.
- Teachers do not discuss details of their personal relationships with pupils.
- The Relationships Education policy reflects and is line with our equal opportunities policy and the school ensures that the Relationships Education teaching programme is an inclusive one and is appropriate and relevant to all pupils, including those with SEN and disabilities. Teachers ensure that the content, approach and use of inclusive language reflect the diversity of the school community, and help all pupils feel valued and included, regardless of their gender, ability, disability, experiences and family background.
- Where needed, Relationships Education is differentiated to meet the needs of pupils and specialist resources may be used to respond to their individual needs. In some cases pupils have individual support or work in small groups with a TA or learning mentor.

- Teachers are sensitive to the issues of different types of relationships. Promoting inclusion and reducing discrimination are part of Relationships Education throughout the school and reflect our equality policy. When teaching about relationships and families we also include same sex relationships. The teaching programme in year 5 and 6 will include specific understanding of different types of relationships, including LGBTQ+
- Homophobic and transphobic references and homophobic and transphobic actions and bullying are not tolerated in school and are challenged and dealt with as part of our commitment to promoting inclusion, gender equality and preventing bullying.
- Teaching about different families is part of Relationships Education and we aim to reflect the broad range of experiences amongst pupils and ensure all pupils feel their family is valued, such as: single parent families; recently divorced parents; parents who are married, parents who are not married, lesbian or gay parents; children living between two homes; in foster homes; in residential homes and living with relations other than biological parents. We will emphasise the importance of strong and supportive relationships, including marriage (both heterosexual and gay) and civil partnerships, for family life and bringing up children.

#### Involving pupils

To ensure the Relationships Education programme meets the needs of pupils, the PSHE Lead involves the children in reviewing and evaluating the programme each year.

The PSHE Lead also gathers feedback from teachers about pupils' engagement in the curriculum.

#### 9. Statutory Elements of Relationships Education

#### Science National Curriculum

All primary schools are required to teach the Science National Curriculum which covers the biological aspects of sex education; growth and development, naming body parts, a basic understanding of the life process of reproduction and the human life cycle. See Appendix 1. Parents do not have the right to withdraw from science.

#### Health Education and Puberty

All primary schools are required to teach statutory Health Education that includes teaching about puberty. We begin teaching about puberty in year 4 as part of learning about the human life cycle and introduce basic information about the changes for boys and girls that happen at puberty. We continue in year 5 with more detailed information about what happens at puberty including the physical and emotional changes and revisit this in year 6.

#### How is sex education, biological aspects of science and puberty taught?

These are taught through PSHE and Science in mixed groups to ensure that boys and girls learn the same information. However, sometimes it is useful in years 5 and 6 to include time when single sex groups can discuss issues with a teacher of the same sex. When we teach the biological aspects of science, puberty (year 5 and 6) and sex education (year 6) we provide a question box so that pupils can anonymously ask questions and these are then answered by the class teacher.

#### 10. Sex Education and the Right to withdraw children (year 6)

At Torriano we teach some sex education that is in addition to the science national curriculum. Sex education is defined as teaching about sexual intercourse in the context of learning about how a baby is made and a basic understanding of pregnancy and how the baby develops. This is taught in year 6, usually by the class teacher.

#### Right to withdraw children from sex education

We hope that parents and carers will support this important part of children's education and we will make sure that all parents and carers know what we will be teaching and when. However, we understand that some parents may want to educate their children about these aspects of sex education and parents have the right to request that their child is withdrawn from any or all parts of sex education.

If a parent wishes to withdraw their child from the sex education lessons they must arrange a meeting with the Head of School or PSHE Lead who will talk through their concerns and discuss the benefits of their child learning about sex education. If they decide to withdraw their child, work will be provided to do in another class. We will offer packs of the teaching materials if parents wish to use this with their children at home. Parents can talk to the PSHE Lead about the resources to support this.

#### 11. Confidentiality, safeguarding and child protection

Although Relationships Education is not about personal disclosures and personal issues, it is possible that a pupil will disclose concerns or worries for themselves or others. Staff understand that they cannot promise pupils absolute confidentiality in orders to support and keep them safe and pupils know this too.

If teachers are concerned in any way that a pupil is at risk of sexual or any other kind of abuse, they will talk to the Designated Safeguarding lead and follow the school's Child Protection Procedures. If a pupil discloses to a teacher that they are sexually active, or are considering sexual activity, then this would be viewed as a child protection issue.

#### 12. Assessing Relationships Education

Pupils' progress in learning in Relationships Education is assessed as part of the assessment of PSHE.

#### 13. Monitoring and Evaluating Relationships Education

The PSHE Lead monitors teachers' planning to ensure Relationships Education is being taught. Pupils and staff are involved in evaluating the Relationships Education teaching programme as part of the annual review of PSHE and Citizenship which also involves the school council.

Training staff to deliver Relationships Education

It is important that Relationships Education is taught by teachers who are knowledgeable, skilled and confident. We ensure that teachers are trained to teach Relationships Education and provide a range of training opportunities including school-based INSET, team teaching, classroom observations and external training courses provided by Camden LA and other organisations.

Training could include:

- What to teach and when
- Leading discussions about attitudes and values
- Information updates
- Practising a variety of teaching methods
- Facilitating group discussions
- Answering questions
- Managing sensitive and controversial issues

#### 14. Engaging and involving parents

We place the utmost importance on sharing responsibility with parents and carers for their children's education. We take account of religious and cultural views and aim to balance parental views with our commitment to comprehensive Relationships Education and compliance with the statutory guidance and Equality Act.

We will let parents know what will be taught and when and the resources that will be used and particularly consult parents before Year 6 about what will be taught in sex education and the resources that will be used..

We will take every opportunity to inform and involve parents and carers by

- Consulting with parents when developing the Relationships Education
- Publishing the Relationships Education policy on the school website
- Including a summary of the content and organisation of Relationships Education and Sex Education in the school website
- Providing information about content of the Relationships Education and Sex education teaching programme as part of the termly information on the curriculum
- Inviting parents and carers to a meeting to find out about the Relationships Education and Sex Education programmes
- Inviting year 5 and 6 parents to a meeting about what will be taught in relationships education, science and sex education and include tips for talking to their children about relationships education and sex education.

#### 15. Disseminating the policy

A copy of this policy is on the school website. It is included in the

- Staff Handbook
- Governor Handbook

A summary is included in the school website. Copies are supplied to visitors who are involved in providing Relationships Education in school.

When the policy is being reviewed, parents are informed through the newsletter and school's website.

#### 16. Roles and Responsibilities

PSHE Leads: Rosemary O'Brien and Katherine Cooke Governor with a lead on Relationships Education: Albyn Leah Hall Designated Safeguarding Lead: Laura Lien

#### The Governing body

The named governor and governing body will approve the Relationship Education policy and hold the Executive Headteacher and Heads of School to account for its implementation.

#### Executive Head and Head of School

They are responsible for ensuring that Relationships and Sex Education (RSE) is taught consistently across the school, for sharing resources and materials with parents and carers, and for managing requests to withdraw pupils from [non-statutory/non-science] components of RSE (see section 10).

#### <u>Staff</u>

All teachers are responsible for:

Delivering RSE in a sensitive way

Modelling positive attitudes to RSE

Monitoring progress

Responding to the needs of individual pupils

Responding appropriately to pupils whose parents/carers wish them to be withdrawn from the [non-statutory/non-science] components of RSE

Teachers do not have the right to opt out of teaching RSE. Staff who have concerns about teaching RSE are encouraged to discuss this with the Head of school.

#### <u>Pupils</u>

Pupils are expected to engage fully in RSE and, when discussing issues related to RSE, treat others with respect and sensitivity

#### <u>Appendix 1</u>

Relevant links to the Science National Curriculum.

#### <u>Key Stage 1</u>

Year 1

Animals, including humans

Identify, name, draw and label the basic parts of the human body and say which part of the body is associated with each sense.

#### Year 2

#### <u>Animals, including humans</u>

Notice that animals, including humans, have offspring which grow into adults

#### Non-statutory Guidance

Pupils should be introduced to the basic needs of animals for survival, as well as the importance of exercise and nutrition for humans. They should also be introduced to the processes of reproduction and growth in animals. The focus at this stage should be on questions that help pupils to recognise growth; they should not be expected to understand how reproduction occurs.

The following examples might be used: growing into adults can include reference to baby, toddler, child, teenager, adult. Pupils might work scientifically by: observing, through video or first-hand observation and measurement, how different animals, including humans, grow.

#### <u>Key Stage 2</u>

Year 3 No content linked to Relationships Education.

Year 4

No content linked to Relationships Education.

#### Year 5

#### Living things and their habitats

Describe the life process of reproduction in some plants and animals.

Pupils should find out about different types of reproduction, including sexual reproduction in animals. They might observe changes in an animal over a period of time (for example, by hatching and rearing chicks), comparing how different animals reproduce and grow.

#### Animals, including humans

#### Describe the changes as humans develop to old age.

Pupils should draw a timeline to indicate stages in the growth and development of humans. They should learn about the changes experienced in puberty.

Pupils could work scientifically by researching the gestation periods of other animals and comparing them with humans; by finding out and recording the length and mass of a baby as it grows.

#### Year 6 No content linked to Relationships Education

# <u>Appendix 2</u>

Statutory content for relationships Education

Торіс	By the end of Primary, pupils should know
Families and people who care for me	<ul> <li>that families are important for children growing up because they can give love, security and stability</li> <li>the characteristics of healthy family life, commitment to each other, including in times of difficulty, protection and care for children and other family members, the importance of spending time together and sharing each other's lives.</li> <li>that others' families, either in school or in the wider world, sometimes look different from their family, but that they should respect those differences and know that other children's families are also characterised by love and care for them.</li> <li>that stable, caring relationships, which may be of different types, are at the heart of happy families, and are important for children's security as they grow up.</li> <li>that marriage* represents a formal and legally recognised commitment of two people to each other which is intended to be lifelong.</li> <li>how to recognise if family relationships are making them feel unhappy or unsafe, and how to seek help or advice from others if needed</li> </ul>
	*marriage including both opposite sex and same sex couples
Caring friendships	<ul> <li>how important friendships are in making us feel happy and secure, and how people choose and make friends.</li> <li>the characteristics of friendships, including mutual respect, truthfulness, trustworthiness, loyalty, kindness, generosity, trust, sharing interests and experiences and support with problems and difficulties.</li> <li>that healthy friendships are positive and welcoming towards others, and do not make others feel lonely or excluded.</li> <li>that most friendships have ups and downs, and that these can often be worked through so that the friendship is repaired or even strengthened, and that resorting to violence is never right.</li> <li>how to recognise who to trust and who not to trust, how to judge when a friendship is making them feel unhappy or uncomfortable, managing conflict, how to manage these situations and how to seek help or advice from others, if needed.</li> </ul>

Respectful relationships	•	the importance of respecting others, even when they are very different from them (for example, physically, in character, personality or backgrounds), or make different choices or have different preferences or beliefs. practical steps they can take in a range of different contexts to improve or support respectful relationships I the conventions of courtesy and manners. the importance of self-respect and how this links to their own
		happiness.
	⊠	that in school and in wider society they can expect to be treated with respect by others, and that in turn they should show due respect to others, including those in positions of authority.
	⊠	about different types of bullying (including cyberbullying), the impact of bullying, responsibilities of bystanders (primarily reporting bullying to an adult) and how to get help.
		what a stereotype is, and how stereotypes can be unfair, negative or destructive.
	⊠	the importance of permission-seeking and giving in relationships with friends, peers and adults
Online relationships	⊠	that people sometimes behave differently online, including by pretending to be someone they are not.
		that the same principles apply to online relationships as to face-to-face relationships, including the importance of respect for others online including when we are anonymous.
		the rules and principles for keeping safe online, how to recognise risks, harmful content and contact, and how to report them.
		how to critically consider their online friendships and sources of information including awareness of the risks associated with people they have never met.
		how information and data is shared and used online
Being safe		what sorts of boundaries are appropriate in friendships with peers and others (including in a digital context).
		about the concept of privacy and the implications of it for both children and adults; including that it is not always right to keep secrets if they relate to being safe
		right to keep secrets if they relate to being safe. that each person's body belongs to them, and the differences between appropriate and inappropriate or unsafe physical, and other, contact.
		how to respond safely and appropriately to adults they may encounter (in all contexts, including online) whom they do not know.
	⊠	how to recognise and report feelings of being unsafe or feeling bad about any adult.
		how to ask for advice or help for themselves or others, and to keep trying until they are heard
16		

how to report concerns or abuse, and the vocabulary and confidence needed to do so.
where to get advice e.g. family, school and/or other sources

<u>Appendix 3</u> Statutory content for Health Education (relevant to Relationships Education and Sex Education)

Торіс	By the end of Primary, pupils should know	
Changing adolescent body	<ul> <li>key facts about puberty and the changing adolescent body, particularly from age 9 through to age 11, including physical and emotional changes</li> <li>about menstrual wellbeing including the key facts about the menstrual cycle.</li> </ul>	